ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
April 20, 2005
8:47 a.m
MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non
Representative Jim El ki ns

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative John Harris
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG&( S)

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane

McKi e Canpbel

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER
MCKI E CAMPBELL, Comm ssi oner
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nted conm ssioner of the
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO CHAIR GABRI ELLE LEDOUX called the House Special Committee on

Fisheries neeting to order at 8:47:53 AM Represent ati ves
LeDoux, Thomas, Elkins, and Salnmon were present at the call to
order. Representatives WIson and Kapsner arrived as the

nmeeti ng was in progress.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- April 20, 2005



CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane

CO CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the commttee would consider the
confirmation of the appointment of MKie Canpbell to the
position of Comm ssioner of the Al aska Departnent of Fish &
Gane.

8:48: 32 AM

MCKI E CAMPBELL, Commi ssioner, Alaska Departnent of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G), stated that he was available to answer any of the
comm ttee nenbers' questions.

CO CHAI R LEDQUX asked Conm ssioner Canpbell why he wanted the
j ob.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL expl ained that he served in the ADF&G as
Special Assistant to the Comm ssioner in 1991 during Governor
Walter Hickel's admnistration, and he later acted as Deputy
Comm ssi oner . He comented, "I enjoyed that job nore than any
job that I've ever had." He said that he worked with a great
group of people [at ADF&G .

8:49:44 AM

CO-CHAIR LEDOUX asked for further clarification of Conm ssioner
Canmpbel | 's work history.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL expl ained that he worked as |egislative
commttee staff in the Alaska State Legislature from 1981-1990.
He then becane Special Assistant to the Conm ssioner of ADF&G
and soon after becane the Deputy Chief of Staff in the Al aska
Governor's Ofice. In 1993 he returned to ADF&G as Deputy
Conmi ssi oner .

8:50: 53 AM

CO CHAIR LEDOUX asked Conmi ssioner Canpbell to describe the
hardest issue that he had to deal with during his service under
t he Hi ckel adm nistration.

COWMWM SSI ONER  CAVMPBELL  repli ed, "Subsi stence and wolves."
Regar di ng subsistence issues, he said that [it was a chall enge]
to work with all parties throughout the state to try to achieve
some kind of workable solution. He noted that the issues of

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- April 20, 2005



subsi stence and wolf [population control] have been issues that
the state has westled with for the | ast 50 years.

8:52:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked Comm ssioner Canpbell what he woul d
change if he had to deal with subsistence issues again.

COWMM SSI ONER CAMPBELL repl i ed:

| have been part of attenpts to resolve subsistence
1986 through the tine |I left, and | have worked on
attenpts having to do with constitutional amendnents
[and] having to do w thout constitutional anmendnents.

| believe the situation that we have right now is we

have federal managenent. ... In 1990 what happened was
the federal subsistence board adopted the state gane
regul ations for subsistence entirely ... but since

that tinme there has been this w de divergence. Sone
of that has been reasoned; they thought of it and they
decided, "No, we don't l|ike the standards the state
set," and they've nmade decisions to have different
standards or different limts.

But there's a whole bunch of things that have happened
sinply because either our board or their board is in
slightly different cycles. The opportunities that are
provided in the state subsistence Jlaw and the
opportunities that are provided in the federal
subsistence law are not markedly different; it's not
greater opportunity one way or the other. But because
they're slightly different, we have resulted in a real
mess of regulations between the two.... That really
is a disadvantage to the users and we are going to try
to work with the federal governnent to see if there's
some way we can jointly work together to clean those

up.
8:54: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER commented that there have been a nunber
of both regular and special |egislative sessions involving the
subsi st ence i ssue.

COW SSI ONER CAMPBELL agr eed. He noted that he was involved in
every session from 1986-1994. He commented that no one wal ks

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- April 20, 2005



away from the subsistence issue unwounded, but "that doesn't
mean we don't continue to need to deal with it."

8:55:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER remarked, "My constituents are actually
quite pleased with federal managenent but that's not to say that

it's a perfect system | think dual rmanagenent s very
conpl i cat ed, especially when vyou're dealing wth nobile
speci es. " She opined that she is fortunate in that she cones
from an area in Alaska that is all federal Iand, but she

expressed synpathy for people from the Kodiak area, where the
land is split between the federal governnent and [the state
gover nnent | . She asked Conm ssioner Canpbell, "Can you put on
the record what kind of regulations you want changed in federa
managenent, and is part of your plan to dimnish the protections
we have in [Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act
(ANILCA) ] ?"

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL answered, "lI'd like to say unequivocally
it is not part of the plan to dimnish the protections under
ANILCA;, 1'd like to get that firmly on the record first." He
cormented that the regulations are very conplex, and often the
di fferences between state and federal regulations do not result
in significant differences in subsistence opportunity. He
presented an exanple from about 10 years ago in which Red Creek
sheep [hunting] was closed to everyone except for residents of
Arctic Vill age. He commented that since that tinme there is no
record of any sheep taken by anybody. He said, "If there's not
a subsistence use of those sheep, we ought to go and | ook and
say, 'Can we open it back up for w der access?”

8:57:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER remarked, "Because there is no record
does that nean none have been taken? ... Perhaps that's nore of
a reflection that the subsistence division [of ADF&F doesn't
have the resources to get the data on paper.™

COM SSI ONER CAMPBELL replied that this may be the case. He
noted that one of the issues of subsistence is always the issue
of reporting and keeping accurate records. He commented, "W're
not talking about a dimnishnent of opportunity; what we're
talking about 1is, '"Are there places where you can have
clarification for all users and are there places we you may have
the ability to increase opportunity for other users w thout any
di m ni shnent . "

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- April 20, 2005



8:59:17 AM

CO CHAI R THOMAS voi ced disappointrment in the ADF&G budget this
year; he commented that the budget increases were for salaries
only. He asked Comm ssioner Canpbell if he will fight for the
ADF&G budget to be increased for new fisheries.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL answered that he will. He opined that the
ADF&G is "pretty beaten down right now" He said that when he
worked at the legislature [25] years ago many of the legislators
were comercial fishermen who knew the inportance of fish and
wildlife as the econom c engine of Al aska. He conmented that he
hoped the House Special Commttee on Fisheries will help ADF&G
be anbassadors to the legislature for the inportance of fish and
wildlife to the state.

9:01: 50 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS tal ked about the shrinp fishery and king crab
fishery, which he surm sed are underutilized in certain areas of
t he state.

COWM SSI ONER  CAMPBELL responded, " t hi nk, unfortunately,
t hroughout our state we have nunerous exanples of underutilized
fisheries, and that's a |ost econom c opportunity to the state.”
He commented that he didn't think Railbelt | egi sl ators
understand the value of [fisheries]. He continued:

The hardest type of econom c devel opnent for our state
to develop is economc opportunities in rural Al aska.
And again, both fish and wildlife can provide nmultiple
opportunities for economc base in rural Al aska that
benefit our state entirely, because anything that
happens out there is also going to benefit the
Rai | bel t.

9:03:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER interjected that she needed to leave to
attend a neeting. She noted that she still has a nunber of
guestions that she wi shes Conm ssioner Canpbell to answer on the
record, so she will pose these questions at the House Resources
Standi ng Conm ttee confirmati on hearing.

9:05:43 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- April 20, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked for exanples of rural economc
devel opnment i deas.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL answered that one such idea would be to
find underutilized fisheries to develop, or build up existing
fisheries; he said that nost of these occur in rural parts of
the state. He stated that this would give econom c opportunity
to the fishermen who live in the area, and if there is a raw
fish tax, this would provide further funds to the |ocal econony.
As anot her exanple, he said, would be for village corporations
to find econom c opportunities in sport fishing and hunting. As
a third exanple, he told the commttee how a group of people on
Little Dionede are starting a cottage industry to tie flies,
usi ng pol ar bear hair, for sport fishernen.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL then turned to the topic of tourists, who
he said would not conme to Alaska if not for the wildlife here
He commented that he would like every tourist to | eave the state
with a taste for Al aska seaf ood.

9:08: 59 AM

COCHAIR THOVAS remarked that he has a |lifetinme [halibut
fishing] permit for Gacier Bay National Park and Preserve,
which he would like to be able to pass on to his children. He
said, "I feel like I'm being displaced for cruise ships." He
expressed his dislike for having the bay closed to commerci al
fishing.

COWM SSI ONER CAVPBELL stated, "Wat happened in G acier Bay was
just flat wong in ny opinion. ... [But] we have a nuch better
| eadership of the [National Park Service] now ..., and | think
we have sone roomto work."

CO- CHAIR THOVAS reiterated that he wants lifetinme permt hol ders
to be able to hand the permts down to fam |y nenbers.

9:10: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked for Conmmi ssioner Canpbell's feelings
regardi ng the wol ves around MG at h.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL responded that ADF&G has a |lot of active
predator control prograns. He said that a [wolf hunter] told
him that it is very inportant for [the hunter] to have wolves
and bears be part of the ecosystem but in the |ast eight years
"things had gotten so out of whack"” that many npbose and cari bou

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- April 20, 2005



popul ati ons were severely depressed. He said that wolves can
target particular noose or caribou populations and "ride it
down" while supplenenting their diets with other foods, and
therefore even if the npbose or caribou population crashes, the
wol ves maintain their nunbers. He commented that there are
definitely places and tinmes where Al askans need to "step in and
reduce wol f nunbers.”

9:13: 22 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS related a story in which an ADF&G representative
was in Haines for a |local advisory board neeting and there was a
di fference of opinion; the |ocal residents believe that the bear
popul ation is too high and the npose population is too |ow,
while [the departnment believes the opposite]. He voiced the
opinion that the departnent isn'"t controlling the Dbear
popul ation properly. He also said that he thought the ADF&G
enpl oyee was rude to the | ocal residents.

9:15: 15 AM

COW SS|I ONER CAMPBELL remarked that he will look into the bear
i ssue in the Hai nes area. He noted that ADF&G will need to have
adequate funds to do the background research. Regar di ng

enpl oyee attitude, he comented that ADF&G personnel are well -
educated and good enployees, but some of them don't know rmnuch
about custoner relations. He said:

One of the things that |'ve already talked to the
directors about [ and] am going to be talking
t hroughout the departnent about is how we treat and

interact with our custoners. It doesn't always nean
we do what they want. ... But it does nean we can be
dealing with people in a friendly, courteous, and
above all, square way to no one ever feels they

weren't given full truth or were m sl ead.
9:17:46 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX commented that a nunber of her constituents have
told her that ADF&G enpl oyees have been injecting sonme sort of
dye into the npbose population around Iliama in order to count
t he noose, but this dyeing process is making the noose unfit for
human consunpti on.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- April 20, 2005



COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL replied that he had never heard of this
He said that he will look into the issue, but "it sounds very
bi zarre.” He comented that this is probably a "rural nmyth."

CO CHAI R LEDOUX poi nted out that she had heard this from severa
people, including a public health professional in one of the
vi |l | ages.

COWMM SSI ONER CAMPBELL responded that the only thing that he can
think of is that the departnent injects nobose when they are
being noved to a new |location, and those chem cals can nake the
noose unfit to eat for a short period of tine. However the
departnment takes care to ensure that the injected nobose are not
harvested during the tinme that those <chemcals are stil
present .

9:20: 31 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked Comm ssioner Canpbell if he supports the
i dea of processor shares.

COW SSI ONER CAMPBELL answered, "I don't know yet. In all
fairness, rationalization is a very tough issue; we're working
our way through it." He noted that he was [working for AD&FG

when the halibut fishery was changed to individual fishing
guotas (I FQs).

CO- CHAIR THOVAS remarked that he was not supportive of |FQs
originally, but now he sees the pros and the cons.

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL agreed that there are pros and cons to the
| FQ program He noted that the program had substantia
di sadvant ages for crewrenbers.

9:22:25 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked the conmi ssioner if he has any thoughts on
SB 113- GULF OF ALASKA GROUNDFI SH FI SHERY

COWM SSI ONER CAMPBELL responded, "W are actively working on
that right now and that is tied up in this whole processor share
issue.... We will get that to you here in the very near future
of what the departnent's position is."

9:22:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON r emar ked:

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- April 20, 2005



Sooner or later the state is going to be faced wth
the idea that there's a lot of Qutside hunters com ng
in, and there's going to be a point where the limt of
resources that they're comng up here for is going to
be [)eopardized]. - How do vyou feel about
controlling that influx of [Qutside hunters] comng in
to take our resources?

COW SSI ONER CAMPBELL repli ed:

Under both state |aw and federal |aw subsistence use
of those resources has a clear priority. ... If there
is additional resource that 1is available over and
above the needs of subsistence use then that needs to
go to resident hunters. And then under state law, if
there is additional resource available, and only when

there's additional resource available, then | think
you have an adequate supply for out of state hunters.
But ... | think there's a clear hierarchy there of
uses of those resources and | think that's firmy

established in both | aw and in departnent policy.
9:24:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked what the npose popul ation has to be
before the departnment enforces the | aw.

COM SSI ONER CAMPBELL answered that the noose population wll
vary by location relative to the local subsistence needs. He
expl ai ned, "You |ook at how many |ocal subsistence users there
are and what their needs are and then after that you | ook at how
many resident hunters tend to use the hunt. And it varies for
every location."

9: 25: 15 AM
COW SS| ONER CAMPBELL returned to SB 113 and stated that he has

not had tinme to make hinself fully know edgeable on HB 113. He
noted that ADF&G is on record supporting the bill.

9:26:16 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noved to forward the nanme of MKie
Canmpbell to the joint session of the House and Senate for
confirmation. There being no objection, the confirmation of

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -9- April 20, 2005



McKi e Canpbell was advanced from the House Special Committee on
Fi sheri es.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 9:26:39

AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 10- April 20, 2005



